## JUDGE SOMERS' KANSAS CITY VIRTUAL DOCKETS, PRETRIALS & STATUS CONFERENCES, AND ZOOM TRIAL HEARINGS (Updated 10/06/2021)

Until further notice, Judge Somers' regularly scheduled **docket days** and **pretrial/status conference days** will be conducted by telephone.

Counsel and parties should continue to appear **in person** for matters that are scheduled for an **evidentiary hearing or oral argument**, unless instructed otherwise by Clerk's Office staff. If the Court approves the evidentiary hearing or oral argument by Zoom, those guidelines are included with this document.

If counsel or parties scheduled for an in-person hearing are uncomfortable so appearing or there are circumstances justifying phone or zoom participation of an individual, in lieu of a written motion requesting a continuance or specific accommodation in the manner of conducting the hearing, counsel or a party may contact the Clerk's Office with any concern or request and it will be forwarded to the judge for consideration.

- 1. Telephone Proceedings for Regular Dockets and Pretrial/Status Dockets.
  - a. Participants. The instructions for appearing by telephone are:

Dial: 1-888-363-4749 Participant Access Code: 7701720 #

Please call the conference number at least five minutes prior to the scheduled proceeding. There is NO COST to you for this service.

- **b.** Attendance at the telephone proceedings. All participants in the telephone proceeding shall identify themselves if requested by the Court and before each time they speak (for a clear electronic record) and shall abide by the requirements below.
  - i. Conference Call Etiquette.
    - 1. Call in 5-10 minutes prior to your hearing time.
    - 2. Use a land line, when possible, so the Court can hear you more clearly and for the benefit of the ECRO (official recording of the proceeding).
    - 3. When you call in, place your phone on MUTE. Only unmute your phone when your case is called.
    - 4. Please do not put your phone on speaker when talking because it is often difficult for the Court to hear you clearly.

- 5. Do **not** place your phone on HOLD. This often causes music to be played, which will interfere with others on the call and the ECRO recording.
- 6. Announce your name EACH time you begin speaking.
- 7. Speak slowly and clearly.
- 2. Zoom Proceedings. For video proceedings, the Court shall use Zoom for Government (for audio and video purposes). The Zoom link shall be provided by the Court to the list of persons identified by the parties as Zoom participants in accordance with subparagraph (a) below, and to any other participants who provide notice to the Court in accordance with subparagraph (b) below. All counsel who participate via Zoom shall participate in appropriate testing of Zoom prior to the virtual hearing or trial as may be requested by Court personnel.
  - a. Prior Notice of Intent to Participate Via Zoom. By no later than three (3) business days prior to the scheduled hearing/trial date, counsel for the parties and any unrepresented party shall provide the Court at KC CRDs@ksb.uscourts.gov with a list of all (1) attorneys and unrepresented parties, including the person's first and last names, affiliation, party represented (in the case of attorneys), telephone number and email address, and (2) witnesses (including first and last names, title(s), affiliation, phone number and email address) who will be participating in the virtual evidentiary proceeding via Zoom. Anyone who is connecting to the virtual proceeding by telephone must provide the Court with the telephone number that will be used to connect to the hearing or trial along with the first and last names of the participant. Prior to the proceeding, the Court will circulate the Zoom link to such participants by email. When emailing the Court, please identify the specific case and Zoom meeting you are emailing about in the subject line.
  - b. Attendance at the Virtual Proceeding by Others All who wish to hear or observe the virtual proceeding shall send an email to KC CRDs@ksb.uscourts.gov no later than three (3) business days prior to the scheduled hearing/trial date. If you are connecting to the virtual proceeding by telephone, you must provide the Court with the telephone number that will be used to connect, the first and last names of each person who will connect, and such person's interest in the proceeding. Prior to the proceeding, the Court will circulate the Zoom link to those who wish to hear or observe the proceeding. Persons who are only listening or observing the virtual proceeding must always keep their telephone or microphone muted unless they are addressed by the Court.

- c. Submission of Exhibits. No later than three (3) full business days before trial, all parties shall submit to the clerk's office via e-mail at KSBKC Exhibits@ksb.uscourts.gov or deliver a flash drive (subject to redaction of personal information) of all proposed exhibits in PDF format with each individual exhibit marked per LBR 9072.1, bookmarked if possible, and paginated to ensure easy navigation. The first page of the PDF file shall be the Exhibit Sheet that is available on the court's website and is used to track offering, objections, and admission of exhibits. One paper set of exhibits shall also be delivered to the clerk's office in Kansas City and two paper sets shall be delivered to Judge Somers' chambers in Topeka, tabbed, paginated, and in notebooks for witness use at any live hearing and as a file copy. A complete set of exhibits shall also be delivered by each party to opposing counsel, unrepresented parties, and if applicable, any witness scheduled to appear remotely. Exhibits provided to remotely appearing witnesses shall be in paper form, tabbed, paginated, and in notebooks. All exhibits must be clearly legible. Exhibits exchanged between parties can be in any format agreed between counsel and parties.
- d. Remote Witness Testimony. Any witness called to testify at a virtual proceeding shall testify by contemporaneous transmission from a different location than the courtroom (the "Remote Witness"). All Remote Witnesses shall be sworn in over Zoom, and such testimony will have the same effect as if the Remote Witness were sworn in person in open court at the courthouse. In the event of an error or malfunction with Zoom, the Remote Witness may be sworn in and testify via the dial-in number included in the Zoom invitation. The party offering the Remote Witness shall be responsible for ensuring that the Zoom link, and all exhibits from all parties are supplied to the Remote Witness in hard copy prior to at the virtual evidentiary proceeding. No person other than counsel may be present in the room from which the Remote Witness will testify during the testimony of the Remote Witness. When counsel is questioning a Remote Witness, both the Remote Witness and the counsel must be visible to the Court and other counsel. Best practice is for counsel and Remote Witnesses, as well as parties, to have separate Zoom cameras.
- e. Checking in for Zoom Proceeding. Based on the number of participants in the Zoom proceeding, and the Court's security requirements for participating in a Zoom for Government audio and video hearing or trial, all participants seeking to join the virtual evidentiary proceeding should connect to the hearing or trial 30 minutes before the scheduled start time. When participants sign in to Zoom for Government and add their names, they must type in the first and last name that will be used to identify them at the proceeding. Participants who type in only their first name, a nickname or initials will not be admitted into the virtual hearing or trial.

- f. Protocol. Participants should mute their phones when not addressing the Court to prevent background noise, which is distracting to participants and interferes with the record. Participants should, where possible, avoid speaker phone, Bluetooth, and other hands-free features when addressing the Court, as these features can cause interference.
- **3. Questions.** For questions regarding this hearing, or if you have not received the Zoom conference email, please email <a href="McC\_CRDs@ksb.uscourts.gov">KC\_CRDs@ksb.uscourts.gov</a> or call (913) 735-2110.